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HARIOW LEWIS CALVERT FARMSTEAD, SWINE HOUSE

Location:

Present Owner:

Last Occupant:

Last Use:

Significance:

South side of U.S. Route 50, 1.9 miles
south of Guysville, Athens County, Ohio

USGS Stewart Quadrangle, Universal Transverse
Mercator Coordinates: 17.420170.4346970

David and Marian Coen
Guysville, OH

David and Marian Coen
Guysville, Ohio

Sandstone outcropping

The Harlow Lewis Calvert Farmstead is a rare
surviving example of Allegheny Plateau
agricultural practices, land uses and farm
architecture. The swine house was
constructed at the end of the nineteenth
century. This building, with a stone floor,
provided a sanitary, easily cleaned
environment. The comparison of this
farmstead to others along the Green Branch
Creek shows the evolution and changes in
building and agricultural practices, land
uses, farm animal and goods storage in a
small agricultural district in the second
half of the nineteenth and first half of the
twentieth centuries in Rome and Carthage
Townships, Athens County, Ohio.
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PART I. HISTORICAI INFORMATION

A.

Physical History:
1. Date of erection: ca. 1875-1900.

2. Original and present owner: Original owner was Harlow
L. Calvert. The present owner is David Coen.

3. Builder: Likely, Harlow L. Calvert, his neighbors and
relatives.

4. Original Plans: None.

5. Alterations and additions: The building has been
demolished.

Historical Context: This swine house is an example of a
use-specific building. It was the only surviving swine
house on the five farmsteads along Green Branch Creek that
are recorded by HABS. Athens County was never a
significant swine producing area for the state of Ohio
although swine were the important livestock on many Athens
County farms.

Before the arrival of the railroad in 1857, hogs were
raised on the farm for two summers and a winter, often fed
corn to fatten them, and driven to market at the age of
eighteen to twenty months. Markets were along the Ohio
River, principally at Cincinnati, or east of the Allegheny
Mountains, reached via the National Road (Jones, 1983).

After the construction of the railroad, Cincinnati became
more important as a pork packing center. Because corn
grown in Ohio moved more easily to the east coast as grain
than it did as a fattened hog, corn costs increased.
Consequently, many farmers did not keep hogs for a long
time, but sold them before winter to be fattened at a feed
lot (Jones). A comparison of swine and corn production at
the William Marshall farm in Canaan Township illustrates
this point. 1In 1860, Marshall had seventy-seven hogs which
he fattened on 1200 bushels of Indian corn. A decade
later, he had nearly the same number of swine, fifty, but
only raised a third less corn, 800 bushels. He changed his
farming practice to rely on feed lots for some of the
fattening of his hogs.

By the 1870s, hog farming became more particular with more
farmers being concerned about specific breeds of swine,
where once they had little interest in blood lines or
animal characteristics (Jones).



PART

o

HARLOW L.CALVERT FARMSTEAD, SWINE HOUSE
HABS NO. OH-2412-B
(page 3)
The Civil War had an adverse effect on hog raising. One
reason was the loss of the southern markets. A major pork
consuming area, the southern states used much of the
production from Cincinnati’s processors. Further, Chicago
emerged as the national center of pork processing (Jones).

Following the Civil War, when Harlow Calvert engaged in
swine production, swine were kept in ways that minimized
costs (Jones). Calvert likely breed hogs but did not keep
them more than eight or nine months. They were only on his
farm until fall when they would be shipped off to be
fattened at a corn lot.

In the last three decades of the nineteenth century,
concern for sanitation became an important factor in care
of swine and affected the design of swine enclosures and
houses. Guides for constructing swine houses noted the
need for easily cleaned floors and increased sunlight
(Ekblaw, 1914). Constructing a swine house on a sandstone
outcropping meant the floor could be washed and the gutters
cut in the stone would drain urine and wash water away from
the pens. Guides also encouraged separating pregnant
females from the other swine and keeping young piglets
close to their brood sow until the piglets learn to
recognize their mother (Ekblaw). The interior post holes
likely were for separating pens. Because hogs were no
longer kept over the winter, the Calvert swine house did
not need to provide warmth so much as rain protection for
the piglets born in the spring. It may have had walls open
between the fence side walls and the roof.

The one major drawback of the Calvert swine house was its
location near the residence and farm yard. Farm guides
recommend that swine houses be at the far corner of a
farmyard, downwind from the main business of the farm. The
Calvert swine house was close to all farm activity, its
location exposed the Calverts and their guests to the
strong smell of their hogs.

I. ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION

General Statement

1. Architectural character: This building used locally
available materials, likely oak timber, cut in actual
dimensions. It had a gable roof and was timber framed.

2. Condition of fabric: Only the post holes for the
framing timber and interior pens survive.

Description of the Exterior:
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1. Overall dimensions: The building is rectangular, 11’-
3" x 13’-10". The west facade of the building faced

the residence; the south side faced the farmyard. The
building was one story tall with a gable roof. The
gable faced the main road, north-south.

2. Foundation: The foundation was a sandstone outcropping
with holes cut into the rock to receive the posts of

the timber frame and the posts of interior pens or
fencing.

3. Walls: Exterior walls likely were horizontal boards
nailed to the timber frame with wide spaces like a
board fence. The requirement that the swine house have
maximum sunlight suggests this plan. Or, the walls may
have been solid boards to a certain height, then open
to the roof.

4. Structural system: The framing members were 5" x 5"
sawn timbers, four bays on the east and west sides, cne
bay deep.

5. Openings: Likely, the door to the building faced east,
toward the barn. No evidence of doors or windows
survive.

6. Roof: The roof was gabled with the gable running
north-south. The eave drain for the roof is marked on
the west side of the rock outcropping by the drain.

Description of Interior: The building had pens that
utilized the post holes cut into the rock foundation. The
pens were mostly confined to the south side of the
building. The floor plan of pens cannot be determined.

PART IIT. SQURCES OF INFORMATION

A.

B.

C.

D.

Architectural drawings: None.
Historic views: None.
Interviews: David Coen.
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PART IV. PROJECT INFORMATION

The architectural and historical documentation of the Harlow
Lewis Calvert Farmstead has been undertaken to fulfill a
memorandum of agreement signed by the Advisory Council on
Historic Preservation, the Ohio SHPO and the Ohio Department of
Transportation as part of requirements under regulation 36 CFR
800 of the National Historic Preservation Act. Recording has
taken place prior to removal of structures in the right-of-way of
U.S. Route 50.

This documentation has been prepared by: Rebecca M. Rogers,
Preservation Consultant, 44 Audubon Road, Youngstown, Ohio,
under contract to Center for Cultural Resource Research, 170
William Pitt Way, Pittsburgh, PA. October, 1997-May, 1998.
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